




 

  Paul Pearce                                         Marc Kelley  www.PartnershipForRuralAmerica.org      

  NFCSC Pres 360-607-7388               Campaign Mgr 707-843-4750                                            1 

Partnership For Rural America 
Restoring Economic Vitality to Rural Forested Economies 

An Initiative of National Forest Counties & Schools Coalition 

 

MISSION STATEMENT 

The Partnership for Rural America campaign will work to enact legislation that provides bridge 

funding to forested counties and school districts while economic vitality is restored in these 

communities. Long term economic vitality must include legislation requiring active sustainable 

forest management to achieve resilient forest lands managed by the US Forest Service and 

"Oregon & California Forests" managed by the Bureau of Land Management. 

CURRENT STATUS 

 Many of our national forests are overly dense and at risk for even more severe wildfires. 

The wildfires we are now experiencing destroy everything in their path including animal 

and human life. 

 Many of our national forests are being overwhelmed by insects and disease.  

 The economies of rural forested America have been devastated, not only by lack of 

activities on national forest lands but by increasingly destructive wildfires that 

dramatically impair air quality, destroy the soil, and degrade the drinking water supply. 

The decline in forest health is also having a real effect on tourism. 

 Wildlife habitats and populations are degrading rapidly due to overgrowth, reduced early 

succession habitat, insect epidemics and conflagration level wildfire. 

 

ADVANTAGES TO SUSTAINABLE FOREST MANAGEMENT 

 

 Healthy forests supply an abundant supply of clean water. Healthy watersheds reduce 

storm runoff, stabilize stream banks, shade surface water, cycle nutrients, filter pollutants, 

provide food for game and protected wildlife and support a healthy environment for fish 

 Forest restoration will allow the ecosystem to more easily adapt to the effects of climate 

change by allowing the forest to more effectively sequester carbon from the atmosphere. 

The current out of control and environmentally destructive wildfires do exactly the 

opposite. 

 Healthy forests will return the forest ecosystems to more normalized levels of resistance 

to fires, insects and other diseases. 

 Rural economies will benefit through the creation and retention of thousands of jobs that 

produce local incomes and generate millions of dollars of local and state tax revenue 

 The establishment of healthy federal forests will protect and enhance recreational 

activities that attract tourism related businesses and new residents to the area. 

 Healthy well managed forests will enable the recovery of declining wildlife populations 

across the nation. 



 

  Paul Pearce                                         Marc Kelley  www.PartnershipForRuralAmerica.org      

  NFCSC Pres 360-607-7388               Campaign Mgr 707-843-4750                                            2 

Partnership For Rural America 
Restoring Economic Vitality to Rural Forested Economies 

An Initiative of National Forest Counties & Schools Coalition 

 

PRINCIPLES IN PURSUING FOREST HEALTH LEGISLATION 

 

 Improving the efficiency for planning and implementation will reduce total management 

costs and leverage funds to accomplish more forest restoration. 

 An investment in forest health restoration, which is an investment in rural economies, can 

save millions of dollars in state and federal funds by creating jobs and avoiding costs 

associated with wildfire suppression, social service programs and unemployment 

benefits. 

 Efforts to accelerate the pace of forest health projects must include watershed scale 

projects that provide for less expensive and faster planning. 

 Partners in planning a forest health project should be able to assume certain technical 

assistance roles in project planning. State and tribal forestry departments can play a role 

in project delivery. This could include parts or all of restoration, forest health, silviculture 

and harvesting; (application of Good Neighbor Authority). 

 Stewardship contracting should be extended and include the requirement that 25 percent 

of the receipts go to counties and schools. 

 There should be the necessary authority to pursue markets and investments to utilize 

forest restoration byproducts as part of watershed level and larger forest health projects. 

 Allow third parties to pool funding and prepare the NEPA review for watershed level and 

larger projects. 

 Increase involvement among environmentalists, forest products industry, counties and the 

federal land managers to create the agreement for NEPA to be protected against appeals 

and litigation. 

 The Healthy Forests Restoration Act, which passed Congress overwhelmingly in 2002, 

should be applied more broadly. 

 

CONCLUSION 

 

For many Counties, encumbered by Federal Forest lands, the only real economic opportunity lies 

with the proper use of public forest lands. A more dynamic and inclusive forest management 

process will lead to increased sustainable harvest, increased tourism, direct economic benefit to 

local merchants & suppliers, increased jobs, clean water, clean air, expanded habitat for a wide 

variety of game & protected wildlife species & our fisheries, as well as less destructive wildfire. 

We need to pull together to craft a bill that will work for all sides or face continued gridlock as 

well as environmental and rural economic decline 



Account Object Summary-BalanceFiscal01a

Fiscal Year 2012/13Balances through February

Object Description
Account 

Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Fund 01 - Gen Fund   

1100 165,966.00 169,479.00 64,444.44 101,777.90 3,256.66 Teachers Salaries

1120 4,833.00 4,833.00 1,520.00 3,313.00 Certificated Substitutes

1200 59,350.00 61,714.00 23,154.80 34,732.20 3,827.00 Certificated Pupil Support Ser

1300 65,192.00 65,192.00 21,730.60 43,461.20 .20 Certificated Supervisor Admini

Total for Object 1000 295,341.00 301,218.00 109,329.84 181,491.30 10,396.86 

2100 108,737.00 122,221.00 46,157.89 61,176.48 14,886.63 Instructional Aides' Salaries

2120 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 Classified Substitutes

2200 4,888.00 4,888.00 2,117.16 3,486.26 715.42-Classified Support Salaries

2300 100,802.00 100,922.00 33,300.00 66,945.00 677.00 Classified Supervisors' Admini

2400 113,746.00 113,696.00 38,669.96 75,103.18 77.14-Clerical Technical Office Staf

2900 6,144.00 6,208.00 2,856.00 3,352.00 Other Classified Salaries

Total for Object 2000 335,317.00 348,935.00 120,245.01 209,566.92 19,123.07 

3101 24,366.00 25,256.00 9,019.64 14,877.24 1,359.12 STRS Certificated Positions

3102 300.00 300.00 120.00 180.00 .00 STRS Classified Positions

3202 50,903.00 47,498.00 16,552.88 31,203.98 258.86-PERS Classified Positions

3301 11.16 11.16-OASDI Certificated Positions

3302 19,595.00 21,896.00 7,206.22 12,561.14 2,128.64 OASDI Classified Positions

3311 4,202.00 4,281.00 1,556.36 2,769.18 44.54-Medicare Certificated Position

3312 4,639.00 5,179.00 1,705.61 2,971.62 501.77 Medicare Classified Positions

3401 75,400.00 75,996.00 26,706.84 42,367.00 6,922.16 Health & Welfare Benefits Cert

3402 87,800.00 77,469.00 27,508.96 52,671.41 2,711.37-Health & Welfare Benefits Clas

3501 3,249.00 3,305.00 1,202.64 2,782.06 679.70-SUI Certificated

3502 3,666.00 3,889.00 1,322.67 2,285.64 280.69 SUI Classified

3601 8,448.00 8,405.00 3,124.92 5,182.76 97.32 Workers' Compensation Certific

3602 9,338.00 10,402.00 3,424.68 5,954.94 1,022.38 Workers' Compensation Classifi

3701 27,730.00 21,251.00 12,958.44 8,292.56 OPEB, Allocated Certificated

3802 5,681.00 5,107.00 1,633.24 3,004.91 468.85 PERS Reduction Recapture

3901 12,958.00 12,958.00 Golden Handshake

Total for Object 3000 325,317.00 323,192.00 101,084.66 191,781.48 30,325.86 

4100 532.00 293.13 293.13-Approved Textbooks Core Curric

4200 4,250.00 7,062.00 3,744.80 3,317.20 Library and Reference Material

4300 14,275.00 14,201.00 1,530.34 4,440.97 8,229.69 Materials and Supplies

4320 1,300.00 1,300.00 181.31 724.90 393.79 Custodial Supplies

4330 2,000.00 2,000.00 410.37 1,589.63 Office Supplies

4350 7,000.00 7,000.00 647.75 1,189.06 5,163.19 Vehicle Upkeep

Total for Object 4000 29,357.00 31,563.00 2,359.40 10,803.23 18,400.37 

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2013, Period = 8, Unposted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, 

Restricted Accts? = Y, Fund = 01, Object = 1-7, SACS Fund? = N, Fund Page Break? = N, Obj Lvl = 4, Obj Digits = 1, Page Break? = N)

Selection

Page 1 of 2

Generated for Lauriel Wentling (LWENTLING), Mar  1 2013 12:06PM
001 - Sierra Co Office of Education

http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=56920&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=56920&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1120
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=56920&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=56920&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=56920&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=56920&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2120
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=56920&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=56920&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=56920&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=56920&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2900
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=56920&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3101
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=56920&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3102
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=56920&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3202
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=56920&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3301
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=56920&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3302
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=56920&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3311
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=56920&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3312
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=56920&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3401
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=56920&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3402
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=56920&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3501
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=56920&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3502
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=56920&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3601
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=56920&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3602
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=56920&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3701
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=56920&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3802
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=56920&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3901
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=56920&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=56920&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=56920&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=56920&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4320
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=56920&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4330
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=56920&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4350


Account Object Summary-BalanceFiscal01a

Fiscal Year 2012/13Balances through February

Object Description
Account 

Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Fund 01 - Gen Fund    (continued)

5100 50,000.00 50,000.00 15,600.00 9,400.00 25,000.00 Subagreements for Services

5200 26,031.00 22,553.00 1,513.52 7,513.05 13,526.43 Travel and Conference

5300 16,321.00 16,321.00 2,100.00 7,114.00 7,107.00 Dues and Membership

5400 10,200.00 10,200.00 10,187.00 13.00 Insurance

5500 10,000.00 10,000.00 502.40 1,426.60 8,071.00 Operation Housekeeping Service

5600 3,100.00 3,100.00 255.81 470.93 2,373.26 Rentals, Leases, Repairs, Nonc

5800 9,000.00 9,000.00 4,400.00 3,200.00 1,400.00 Professional Consulting

5801 35,000.00 25,000.00 235.00 765.00 24,000.00 Legal Services

5803 500.00 500.00 200.00 12.93 287.07 Legal Publications

5805 700.00 700.00 250.00 102.00 348.00 Personnel Expense

5806 2,000.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 Negotiations

5808 1,500.00 1,500.00 468.77 741.51 289.72 Other Services & Fees

5810 196,694.00 218,225.00 51,840.14 92,636.71 73,748.15 Contracted Services

5899 1,823.43 869.85 2,693.28-SPJUSD to Reimburse

5900 2,000.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 Communications

Total for Object 5000 363,046.00 371,099.00 79,189.07 134,439.58 157,470.35 

7110 133,586.00 137,961.00 133,353.10 3,972.00 635.90 County Tuition Inter Dist Agre

7141 99,264.00 131,950.00 78,682.43 19,004.34 34,263.23 Tuition, excess cost etc betwe

7310 .00 Direct Support/Indirect Costs

Total for Object 7000 232,850.00 269,911.00 212,035.53 22,976.34 34,899.13 

1,581,228.00 1,645,918.00 624,243.51 751,058.85 270,615.64 Total for Expense accounts

270,615.64 1,581,228.00 1,645,918.00 624,243.51 751,058.85 Total for Org 001, Fund 01 and Expense accounts

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2013, Period = 8, Unposted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, 

Restricted Accts? = Y, Fund = 01, Object = 1-7, SACS Fund? = N, Fund Page Break? = N, Obj Lvl = 4, Obj Digits = 1, Page Break? = N)

Selection

Page 2 of 2

Generated for Lauriel Wentling (LWENTLING), Mar  1 2013 12:06PM
001 - Sierra Co Office of Education

http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=56920&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=56920&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=56920&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=56920&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=56920&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5500
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=56920&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5600
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=56920&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5800
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=56920&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5801
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=56920&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5803
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=56920&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5805
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=56920&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5806
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=56920&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5808
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=56920&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5810
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=56920&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5899
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=56920&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5900
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=56920&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=7110
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=56920&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=7141
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=56920&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=7310


 
 
 
 

February 27, 2013 
 
 
 

Stan Hardeman, Superintendent 
Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 
P.O. Box 157 
Sierraville, CA 96126 
 
Dear Superintendent Hardeman: 
 
Subject:  2012–13 First Interim Reports 
 
Pursuant to California Education Code sections 1240(l) and 42131(f), we have reviewed 
your county office of education and school district’s First Interim Reports and the 
accompanying certifications of financial solvency to determine whether they comply with 
the Criteria and Standards for fiscal stability adopted by the State Board of Education, 
allow your offices to meet their financial obligations during the fiscal year, and are 
consistent with a financial plan that will enable your offices to satisfy their multiyear 
financial commitments. We concur with your assessment that, based on current 
projections, your county office will be able to meet its financial obligations for the current 
and subsequent two fiscal years and that a positive certification is appropriate. We also 
concur with your assessment that, based on current projections, the school district may 
be unable to meet its financial obligations in the second subsequent fiscal year and that 
a qualified certification is appropriate. 
 
Your projections show that the district’s ability to meet its financial obligations for the 
current and two subsequent fiscal years is dependent upon approval by the State 
Allocation Board of the district’s financial hardship application to fund 100% of the roof 
replacement project at the Loyalton High School facility. Absent that approval, the 
district will be responsible for approximately $500,000 of project costs for which no 
discretionary resources are available. We therefore concur with the district’s qualified 
certification. 
 
We appreciate your efforts to maintain fiscal solvency and we ask that you continue to 
keep us informed of changes to the district’s budgetary situation. As you are aware, the 
State Superintendent of Public Instruction (SSPI) is legally responsible to oversee the 
fiscal solvency of school districts for which the county board of education serves as the 
governing board, and the California Department of Education (CDE) may find it 
necessary to intervene in the district’s fiscal condition at any time during the fiscal year 
as provided by EC Section 1630(b).  



Stan Hardeman, Superintendent 
February 27, 2013 
Page 2 
 
 
 
We remind you that as a result of the qualified certification for the current fiscal year, the 
following requirements are in effect:  

 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 3540.2(e), your district must allow the 
SSPI at least 10 working days to review and comment on any proposed labor 
agreements and to render an opinion on whether the agreement would endanger 
the fiscal well-being of the district or county office. 
 
Pursuant to EC Section 42133(b), your district may not issue, for the 2012–13 
and 2013–14 fiscal years, certificates of participation, tax anticipation notes, 
revenue bonds, or any other debt instruments not requiring the approval of the 
voters of the district, unless the SSPI determines that repayment of that 
indebtedness is probable.  

 
We appreciate the submission of your First Interim Reports and await your Second 
Interim Reports, which must be submitted to our office no later than March 18, 2013.  
If you have any questions or concerns, please contact our office by phone at  
916-322-1770. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Peggy O’Guin, Administrator 
Financial Accountability and Information Services 
 
PWO:mp 
y2012-0204a-46-c  
 
cc:  Rose Asquith, Business Manager 



MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEEETING OF THE
SIERRA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION

February 12, 2013
Downieville School, Downieville, California

A.  CALL TO ORDER

President ALLEN WRIGHT called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm.

B.  ROLL CALL

PRESENT: Mr. Allen Wright President
Ms. Sharon Dryden, Vice President
Ms. Patty Hall, Clerk
Mr. Mike Moore, Member
Mr. Tim Driscoll, Member

ABSENT: None

VACANT: One

STAFF: Mr. Stan Hardeman, Superintendent
Ms. Rose Asquith, Business Manager
Ms. Hannah Tomatis, Administrative Assistant
Ms. Marla Stock, Site Administrator – via videoconference
Mr. Derek Cooper, Site Administrator

C. FLAG SALUTE

D. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA
MSCU/MOORE/HALL

E. INFORMATION/DISCUSSION ITEMS

1. CORRESPONDENCE – None

2. SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT

a. Appointment of Rachel Guffin, Downieville School, Instructional Aide, effective
January 18, 2013, 20 hours weekly

b. Contracted Services will be extended for the following year with reductions according to our
students’ needs

c. California County Superintendents Educational Services Association (CCSESA) worked on
lobbying and making recommendations regarding the Local Control Funding Formula,
Common Core Standards, Accountability, Necessary Small School Formulas, County
Operated Opportunity Programs, Small School District Association, CSIS, NCLB, and the
Elementary Secondary Educational Act

d. The Secure Rural Schools payment was received.  The School and Community Partnership
for Rural America has joined a partnership with the American Forestry Resource Council.

e. Haws, Theobold and Auman, PC, agreement was renewed.



Sierra County Board of Education
Regular Meeting Minutes
February 12, 2013

SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
MINUTES

2

3. BUSINESS REPORT

a. Ms. Asquith presented the Board Report-Expenditures by Object 7/01/12 to 1/31/13. There
were no comments or questions.

4. STAFF REPORT - None

5. SPTA REPORT - None

6. BOARD MEMBER’S REPORT - None

7. PUBLIC COMMENT

President WRIGHT opened the meeting for public comment at 6:10 pm.

Marla Stock asked permission to read a letter on behalf of the Sierra Schools Foundation at the
County meeting instead of the District meeting due to technical difficulties.  Permission was
granted.

President WRIGHT closed the meeting for public comment at 6:13 pm.

F.  CONSENT CALENDAR

The following items were included in the consent calendar:
1.  Approval of minutes of the Regular Board meeting held January 8, 2013
2.  Approval of bill warrants for month of January 2013
MSCU/DRISCOLL/HALL

G.  ACTION ITEMS

1.  NEW BUSINESS

a. Approval of the Safe Schools Plan, Version 4.0, Published, February 2013
MSCU/DRISCOLL/MOORE

b. CSBA Delegate Assembly Election, Delegates were selected (Gerving, Stauss)
MSCU/DRYDEN/DRISCOLL

MOORE motioned that items “c” through “n” be approved together if there
were no questions in regards to any one item. DRYDEN seconded.
Motion Passed Unanimously
MSCU/MOORE/DRYDEN

BOARD POLICIES AND ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATIONS

c. Approval of Board Policy 1312.3, Uniform Complaint Procedures

d. Approval of Administrative Regulation 1312.3, Uniform Complaint Procedure

e. Approval of Board Policy 5113.1, Chronic Absence and Truancy



Sierra County Board of Education
Regular Meeting Minutes
February 12, 2013

SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
MINUTES

3

f. Approval of Administrative Regulation  5113.1, Chronic Absence and Truancy

g. Approval of Administrative Regulation  5125, Student Records

h. Approval of Board Policy 5145.6, Parental Notifications

i. Approval of Administrative Regulation 6173.1, Education for Foster Youth

j. Approval of Board Policy 6174, Education for English Language Learners

k. Approval of Administrative Regulation  6174, Education for English Language Learners

l. Approval of Exhibit E 6174, Education for English Language Learners

m. Approval of Board Bylaw 9322, Agenda/Meeting Materials

n. Approval of Board Bylaw 9323.2, Actions By The Board

H.  ADVANCED PLANNING

The next meeting of the Board will be a Special Meeting held on Tuesday, February 26, 2013, at Loyalton
Middle School, Loyalton, California at 6:00 pm to discuss reduction in services, contracted and employed.

The next Regular Board Meeting will be held on March 12, 2013, at Loyalton Middle School, Room 4,
Loyalton School, Loyalton, California, at 6:00 pm.

I.   ADJOURNMENT

MSCU/DRISCOLL/DRYDEN

Adjourned at 6:21 pm.

__________________________ _______________________________
Patty Hall, Clerk Stanford J. Hardeman, Superintendent



MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEEETING OF THE
SIERRA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION

February 26, 2013
Loyalton Middle School, Loyalton, California

A.  CALL TO ORDER

President ALLEN WRIGHT called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm.

B.  ROLL CALL

PRESENT: Mr. Allen Wright President
Ms. Sharon Dryden, Vice President
Ms. Patty Hall, Clerk
Mr. Mike Moore, Member
Mr. Tim Driscoll, Member

ABSENT: None

VACANT: None

STAFF: Mr. Stan Hardeman, Superintendent
Ms. Rose Asquith, Business Manager
Ms. Sue Roberts, Personnel Technician
Ms. Marlene Mongolo- SELPA Director
Ms. Marla Stock, Site Administrator
Mr. Derek Cooper, Site Administrator – via videoconference

C. FLAG SALUTE

D. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA
MSCU/DRISCOLL/HALL

E. PUBLIC COMMENT 6:02 pm-6:04 pm

F. INFORMATION/DISCUSSION ITEMS

1. SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT
a. Reduction in Business Manager’s Contract, .10 FTE
b. Reduction in Speech, Language and Hearing Therapist Contracted Services (40 days)
c. Notice and Letter of Retirement from Stanford J. Hardeman, County Superintendent

G.  ADVANCED PLANNING

The next meeting of the Board will be held on Tuesday, March 12, 2013, at Loyalton Middle School,
Loyalton, California at 6:00 pm.

Suggested Agenda Items
Secure Rural Schools
Second Interim Report



Sierra County Board of Education
Special Meeting Minutes
February 26, 2013

SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
MINUTES

2

H.   ADJOURNMENT

MSCU/MOORE/DRISCOLL

Adjourned at 6:07pm.

__________________________ _______________________________
Patty Hall, Clerk Stanford J. Hardeman, Superintendent



Board ReportReqPay12a

Checks Dated 02/01/2013 through 02/28/2013

Pay to the Order of
Fund

Object

Check 

Date
Check Number

Expensed

Amount

Check

Amount

ROSE ASQUITH 01-520002/07/201300013664 54.37 

01-5899 217.46 163.09 

CASA MUNRAS 01-520002/07/201300013665 652.13 

CCSESA 01-520002/07/201300013666 300.00 

ADRIENNE GARZA 01-520002/07/201300013667 11.00 

01-9200 62.06 51.06 

LIBERTY UTILITIES CPEC 01-550002/07/201300013668 183.02 

BARBARA MCKURTIS 01-510002/07/201300013669 2,700.00 

01-5810 3,600.00 900.00 

SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE          OF 

EDUCATION

01-580802/07/201300013670 152.45 

SIERRA VALLEY HOME CENTER 01-430002/07/201300013671 15.11 

TRI COUNTY SCHOOLS            INSURANCE 

GROUP

01-953502/07/201300013672 3,047.00 

76-9576 14,270.10 11,223.10 

U.S. BANK 01-433002/07/201300013673 62.21 

UI TECHNICAL SUBCOMMITTEE     SANTA 

CLARA COE

01-520002/07/201300013674 70.00 

VOYAGER 01-435002/07/201300013675 216.94 

WESTERN SIERRA MEDICAL CENTER 01-580502/07/201300013676 102.00 

WORKABILITY REGION 4          SHAWNA 

PACHECO

01-520002/07/201300013677 100.00 

ALLEN WRIGHT 01-520002/07/201300013678 28.13 

EMBASSY SUITES 01-520002/21/201300013679 335.37 

LOYALTON HIGH SCHOOL          FFA 01-581002/21/201300013680 100.00 

BARBARA MCKURTIS 01-510002/21/201300013681 2,400.00 

01-5810 3,200.00 800.00 

MIKE MOORE 01-520002/21/201300013682 28.25 

NORTHEASTERN JOINT POWERS     

AUTHORITY

01-360202/21/201300013683 100.60 

SUSAN VANDRUFF, OTR 01-581002/21/201300013684 120.00 

ALLEN WRIGHT 01-520002/21/201300013685 7.07 

23,922.90 Total Number of Checks 22 

Fund Summary

Fund Description Check Count Expensed Amount

County School Service Fund 22 12,699.80 01

Payroll Clearing 1 11,223.10 76

Net (Check Amount)

Less Unpaid Sales Tax Liability

Total Number of Checks 23,922.90 

.00 

23,922.90 

22 

Page 1 of 1

Generated for Lauriel Wentling (LWENTLING), Mar  1 2013 12:04PM001 - Sierra Co Office of Education

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization 

of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved.



  PLEASE POST 

 

 
Sierra County Office of Education 

 

 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

 
The Sierra County Office of Education hereby gives notice that a Public 

Hearing will be held as follows: 
 
 
 PURPOSE: Use of Proposition 30, Education Protection Account   

 
HEARING DATE: March 12, 2013 
 
  TIME: 6 pm 
 

 LOCATION: Loyalton Middle School, Room 4 

  Beckwith Road, Loyalton, CA 

 
 
 
For additional information contact: 
 Rose Asquith, Business Manager 
 (530) 994-1044 x 22 



Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD 

Board Bylaw 

Remuneration, Reimbursement And Other Benefits 
 

BB 9250  

Board Bylaws 
 
 

Remuneration 

 

Each member of the Board of Education may receive the monthly compensation as provided for in law. 

 

On an annual basis, the Board may increase the compensation of Board members beyond the limit 

delineated in Education Code 35120 in an amount not to exceed five percent based on the present 

monthly rate of compensation. Any increase made pursuant to this section shall be effective upon 

approval by the Board. (Education Code 35120) 

 

Board members are not required to accept payment for meetings attended. 

 

If a member does not attend all Board meetings during the month, he/she is eligible to receive a 

percentage of the monthly compensation equal to the percentage of meetings attended unless otherwise 

authorized by the Board in accordance with law. (Education Code 35120) 

 

A member may be paid for meetings he/she missed when the Board, by resolution, finds that he/she was 

performing designated services for the district at the time of the meeting or that he/she was absent 

because of illness, jury duty or a hardship deemed acceptable by the Board.  (Education Code 35120) 

 

Reimbursement of Expenses 

 

Board members shall be reimbursed for traveling expenses incurred when authorized in advance by the 

Board. (Education Code 35044) 

 

(cf. 9240 - Board Development) 

 

The rate of reimbursement shall be the same rate specified for district personnel. 

 

(cf. 3350 - Travel Expenses) 

 

Health and Welfare Benefits 

 

Board members may participate in the health and welfare benefits program provided for district/county 

employees. 

 

Health and welfare benefits for Board members shall be no greater than that received by county/district's 

nonsafety employees with the most generous schedule of benefits.  (Government Code 53208.5) 

 

(cf. 4154/4254/4354 - Health and Welfare Benefits) 

 



The district/county shall pay the cost of all premiums required for Board members electing to participate 

in the district/county health and welfare benefits program to the same extent that the district pays 

premiums for district/county staff in accordance with Government Code 53208.5. 

 

Health and welfare benefits provided to Board members shall be extended at the same level to their 

spouses, dependent children up to the age of 26 and dependent children regardless of age who are 

physically or mentally incapacitated. 

 

If they so choose, retiring trustees of the Board of Education who are covered by the District/County 

health plan at the time of their retirement from the Board after serving at least two (2) full terms, shall 

have the option to continue the benefit program at their own expense. At their own expense, continued 

coverage through the District/County shall also be made available to Board trustee's spouse and 

dependents upon the Board trustee's death.  Retirees who choose to retain health insurance benefits shall 

be placed on the tiered rate structure.  They may select medical coverage only or all offered benefits. 

Retirees are not eligible for life insurance coverage. Retirees may not select dental and/or vision coverage 

without medical coverage.  Eligible retirees and covered spouses must secure Medicare Part A and Part 

B. Retirees who discontinue coverage cannot re-enroll in any District plan. 

 

 

 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 

1090 Compensation for members and mileage allowance 

33050-33053  General waiver authority 

33362-33363  Reimbursement of expenses (Department of Education and CSBA workshops) 

35012 Board members; number, election and term 

35044 Payment of traveling expenses of representatives of board 

35120 Compensation (services as member of governing board) 

35172 Promotional activities 

44038 Cash deposits for transportation purchased on credit 

GOVERNMENT CODE 

20322 Elective officers; election to become member 

53200-53209 Group insurance 

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 26 

403(b) Tax-sheltered annuities 

COURT DECISIONS 

Thorning v. Hollister School District, (1992) 11 Cal.App.4th 1598 

Board of Education of the Palo Alto Unified School District v. Superior Court of Santa Clara County, (1979) 93 Cal.App.3d 578 

ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS 

83 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 124 (2000) 

 

Management Resources: 

WEB SITES 

CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 

Public Employees' Retirement System: http://www.calpers.ca.gov 

 

 SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

Bylaw SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

adopted:  April 10, 2007 Sierraville, California 

revised:   June 12, 2012 



EDUCATION CODE
SECTION 35120-35124

35120.  (a) (1) In any school district in which the average daily
attendance for the prior school year exceeded 400,000, each member of
the city board of education or the governing board of the district
who actually attends all meetings held may receive as compensation
for his or her services a sum not to exceed two thousand dollars
($2,000) per month.

(2) In any school district that is not located in a city and
county, and in which the average daily attendance for the prior
school year exceeded 60,000, the governing board may prescribe, as
compensation for the services of each member of the board who
actually attends all meetings held, a sum not to exceed one thousand
five hundred dollars ($1,500) in any month.

(3) In any school district in which the average daily attendance
for the prior school year was 60,000, or less, but more than 25,000,
each member of the city board of education or the governing board of
the district who actually attends all meetings held may receive as
compensation for his or her services a sum not to exceed seven
hundred fifty dollars ($750) in any month.

(4) In any school district in which the average daily attendance
for the prior school year was 25,000, or less, but more than 10,000,
each member of the city board of education or the governing board of
the district who actually attends all meetings held may receive as
compensation for his or her services a sum not to exceed four hundred
dollars ($400) in any month.

(5) In any school district in which the average daily attendance
for the prior school year was 10,000 or less but more than 1,000,
each member of the city board of education or the governing board of
the district who actually attends all meetings held may receive as
compensation for his or her services a sum not to exceed two hundred
forty dollars ($240) in any month.

(6) In any school district in which the average daily attendance
for the prior school year was 1,000 or less but more than 150, each
member of the city board of education or the governing board of the
district who actually attends all meetings held may receive as
compensation for his or her services a sum not to exceed one hundred
twenty dollars ($120) in any month.

(7) In any school district in which the average daily attendance
for the prior school year was less than 150, each member of the city
board of education or the governing board of the district who
actually attends all meetings held may receive as compensation for
his or her services a sum not to exceed sixty dollars ($60) per
month.

(8) Any member who does not attend all meetings held in any month
may receive, as compensation for his or her services, an amount not
greater than the maximum amount allowed by this subdivision divided
by the number of meetings held and multiplied by the number of
meetings actually attended.

(9) For the purposes of providing compensation pursuant to
paragraphs (1) to (7), inclusive, average daily attendance for the
prior school year may be increased by a school district's percentage
of excused absences reported for the 1996-97 fiscal year.

(b) The compensation of members of the governing board of a school
district newly organized or reorganized shall be governed by



subdivision (a). For this purpose, the total average daily attendance
in all of the schools of the district in the school year in which
the organization or reorganization became effective pursuant to
Section 4062 shall be deemed to be the average daily attendance in
the district for the prior school year.

(c) A member may be paid for any meeting when absent if the board
by resolution duly adopted and included in its minutes finds that at
the time of the meeting he or she is performing services outside the
meeting for the school district or districts, he or she was ill or on
jury duty, or the absence was due to a hardship deemed acceptable by
the board.

(d) The compensation shall be a charge against the funds of the
school district. If the city board of education or the governing
board of the district is the governing board of more than one school
district, the compensation shall be charged against and paid by the
respective school districts in the same proportion as the salary of
the city superintendent of schools is charged against them.
Compensation shall be reduced by an amount equal to any salary or
compensation paid to the members of the city board of education from
any funds of the city.

(e) On an annual basis, the governing board may increase the
compensation of individual board members beyond the limits delineated
in this section, in an amount not to exceed 5 percent based on the
present monthly rate of compensation. Any increase made pursuant to
this section shall be effective upon approval by the governing board.



 

 

SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
2012-2013 Second Interim Narrative 

Presented March 12, 2013 
 

REVENUE 

Revenue Limit Revenue: 
Revenue Limit calculations used a 3.24% COLA and a deficit factor of 22.549% for an unfunded 
revenue limit of ($98,854).   Second semester three Opportunity classes are offered, 
Downieville Elementary,  Loyalton Middle School and Loyalton High School, increasing deficit 
opportunity class funding by $175,000 

 
Federal Revenue 
Federal Revenue is projected to increase by $17,014 since the budget adoption for the following 
reasons:  
             Favorable         

Funding Description            (Unfavorable) 

 Special Education Entitlement ($    744) 

 Special Education Discretionary  $  9,081 

 NCLB      ($    142) 

 Prior Year Adj (REAP & Med-Cal)  $  8,819 

 
State Revenue 
State Revenue is projected to decrease $27,934 since the budget adoption for the following 
reasons:  
             Favorable         

Funding Description            (Unfavorable) 

 Special Education Entitlement ($ 14,201) 

 Mandated Cost    $      458 

 Lottery       $   1,821 

 Tobacco/CTALF  (prior year c/o) ($ 10,565) 

 All other State Revenue  ($   5,447) 

 
Local Revenue 
Local Revenue is projected to decrease $43,562 since the budget adoption for the following 
reasons:  
             Favorable         

Funding Description            (Unfavorable) 

 Interest    ($   4,000) 

 Interagency Services   ($   1,028) 

 Tuition     ($ 38,534) 

 
The chart below compares revenue from the 2011-2012 Actual, 2012-2013 Adopted Budget and 
Second Interim for restricted & unrestricted combined.   
 

Description 2011-2012  
Actual 

2012-2013  
Budget 

2012-2013  
Second Interim 

Revenue limit $405,055 $304,717 $483,696 

Federal  165,556 168,543 185,557 

Other State 495,090 532,221 504,287 

Other Local 243,666 301,377 257,815 

Total $1,309,367 $1,306,858 $1,431,355 



SCOE 2
nd

 Interim, March 12, 2013 

SCOE 2
nd

 Interim, March 12, 2013 
Page 2 of 3 

 

 
 
EXPENDITURES 
 
General Fund Expenditures 
Expenditures increased by $129,580 (General Fund, Unrestricted/Restricted, Page 1,) from the 
Board Approved Operating Budget. 
 
This chart compares expenditures from the 2011-2012, 2012-2013 Budget and Second Interim. 

Description 2011-2012  
Actual 

2012-2013  
Budget 

2012-2013  
Second Interim 

Favorable  
(Unfavorable) 

Budget vs. Second 
Interim 

Certificated $315,493 $295,341 $297,158 (1,817) 

Classified 323,108 335,317 340,764 (5,447) 

Benefits 325,197 325,317 310,428 14,889 

Books & Supplies 18,131 29,357 31,563 (2,206) 

Services & 
Operating 

272,146 363,046 364,902 (1,856) 

Capital Outlay 28,941 0 0 0 

Other Outgo 217,511 232,850 285,292 (52,442)* 

Total $1,500,527 1,581,228 $1,630,107 (48,879) 

*Other Outgo increase is directly related to implementing two additional opportunity classes the 
second half of the school year. 
 

Multiyear Projections 
 

Factor  2011-12  2012-13  2013-14 
proposed  

2014-15  
proposed 

2015-16  
proposed 

Statutory COLA  2.24% 3.24% 1.65% 2.2% 2.4% 

Rev Lim Deficit  20.889% 22.549% 22.549% 22.549% 22.549% 

Indirect Cost Rate 6.83% 11.68% 14.82%   

Workman’s Comp 
(of $100 payroll)  

2.9157% 2.9115%    

PERS 10.923% 11.417% 13.02% 13.02% 13.02% 

STRS 8.25%  8.25%  8.25%  8.25%  8.25%  

UI  1.61% 1.11%    

 
  



SCOE 2
nd

 Interim, March 12, 2013 

SCOE 2
nd

 Interim, March 12, 2013 
Page 3 of 3 

 

 
Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance 
The County is projecting a decrease to ending fund balance for the fiscal years 2011/12 through 
2014/2015.  See table below. 
 

Fiscal Year Amount 

2011-12 actual  ($30,330) 

2012-13 2nd Interim projected ($135,576) 

2013-14 projected ($319,006) 

2014-15 projected ($341,845) 

 
Projected Ending Fund Balance 
2011-12 $1,902,695 ACTUAL 
2012-13 $1,767,119 
2013-14 $1,448,113 
2014-15 $1,106,268 

 
Other Comments 

 Proposition 30 was passed by the voters.  Revenue generated from Prop 30 will be 
called the Education Protection Account (EPA). One caveat is that Prop 30 revenue 
cannot be spent on “administration.”  Fortunately, business services provided by county 
offices to districts are not considered administration cost. 

 Forest Reserve revenue ends fiscal year 2012-2013. A loss of ($63,000). 
 Sequestration net effect estimate of 5.9%.  
 Nonprop 20 Lottery increased to $124 per ADA and Prop 20 to $30 per ADA. 
 A positive cash flow is projected to be positive for fiscal year 2012-13 and 2013-2014, an 

ending cash balance of $1,892,121 and $1,537,035 respectively. 
 Reserve requirement is met for all three years. 
 Negotiations for fiscal year 2013-2014 unsettled. 
 Health Care premiums expected to be 8% per medical plan, vision and dental plans to 

increase annual by $24 & $48, respectively.  
 Administration office will be moving to Loyalton when the District administration staff 

moves, June 2013. 

  
Personnel  FTE 
Certificated  3.60 
Cert Mgmt  1.15 
Classified  6.90 
Confidential  3.25scoe 2nd interim narrative 2012-2013 














































































































































































	1_SCOE_Agenda.pdf
	2_PFRA Legislative White Paper.pdf
	3_feb2013scoereport.pdf
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	









	4_Letter_Sierra-Plumas COE  USD 2012-13 1st Interim.pdf
	5.5_2-12-13 SCOE Minutes.pdf
	5-26-13 SCOE_SPCL_MEET_Minutes.pdf
	5_feb2013scoechecks.pdf
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	



	6_SCOE_EPA Funds.pdf
	7_BB9250 Remuneration, Reimbursement.pdf
	8_EDUCATION CODE.pdf
	9_SCOE 2nd Interim Narrative 2012-2013.pdf
	10_scoe 2nd_001.pdf

